
 

 

 

Rutland County Council                   
 
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP. 
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 

        
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
A meeting of the RUTLAND SACRE (STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION) will be held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham 
on Tuesday, 17th March, 2020 commencing at 4.30 pm when it is hoped you will be 
able to attend. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Helen Briggs 
Chief Executive 
 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
council/have-your-say/ 
 
Please note hard copies of the agenda will not be available at the meeting. If you 
require a hard copy of the agenda please email your request to 
governance@rutland.gov.uk or telephone (01572) 720991. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1) A MOMENT FOR REFLECTION  

 We gather together here today intent on doing good work. 
We seek to represent fairly and well, those who have given us this task. 
May our efforts be blessed with insight, guided by understanding and wisdom. 
We seek to serve with respect for all. 
May our personal beliefs give us strength to act honestly and well in all matters 
before us. 

 

2) APOLOGIES   

3) RECORD OF MEETING  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Rutland SACRE held on 21 
January 2020. 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk


 

 

4) DEVELOPMENT PLAN - 2020-22  

 For members to review the Development Plan 2020-22 
(Pages 3 - 6) 

 

5) MATTERS ARISING FROM THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

 To discuss recommendations to be sent to NASACRE, survey to teachers, and 
any other matters arising from the development plan. 

 

6) UPDATE ON RE AND OFSTED  

 To receive an update from Amanda Fitton. 
 
Ofsted report from Chesterton Primary School in Cambridge attached for 
discussion. 
(Pages 7 - 14) 

 

7) ANY URGENT BUSINESS   

8) DATE OF NEXT MEETING:  

 Dates to be confirmed at Annual Council on 11 May 2020: 
 

 Tuesday 7 July 2020 

 Tuesday 6 October 2020 

 Tuesday 19 January 2020 

 Tuesday 27 April 2020 
 

 
---oOo--- 

 
TO: ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE RUTLAND SACRE (STANDING ADVISORY 
COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION) 
 

OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION 
 



SACRE Development Plan: Post meeting re - draft 

2020 – 2022 

Introduction: There are many issues that face the modern world, often with a moral and ethical element.  Religion continues to play a significant role in many 

people’s lives, whilst for some religion does not.  There continues to be a misconception that ‘RE’ is about the teaching of the doctrines attached to religions, 

rather than a more philosophical academic approach that aims, rather, to discuss the abstract nature of faith, belief and the wider moral and ethical issues 

that face a modern world.  The value placed by schools on RE varies greatly reflected perhaps in low engagement levels by individual schools with the various 

working groups, seminars, networks and other opportunities to engage.  It is therefore vital, that this engagement is increased so that schools value the many 

benefits to their pupils’ development that a rich and well planned RE curriculum can deliver. 

Considering the available resources, balanced with the tasks required to deliver on these three strategic aims; the committee has determined that the plan 

offers an achievable scope for its work over the next two years.  It may well be that during the course of delivering on the aims of the plan, cross curricular 

linking opportunities will be explored and noted.  It is anticipated that the richness of opportunity for cross curricular links for this subject will form a strategic 

aim for the next development plan; work over the next two years will inform this work. 

It should also be noted that this plan focuses on RE as a discrete subject in its own right; the academic skills at the fore front of thought hence no reference 

to ‘Collective Worship’ as this SACRE wishes to draw a clear distinction between these two elements.   

This SACRE has also had in depth discussions regarding how outcomes are measured.  Public exam results for both GCSE and A – Level as well the number of 

pupils opting to take this subject post 16 are the obvious data sources but it was strongly felt that data at 16 and 18 does not measure outcomes effectively 

enough: the impact on the younger child notable by its absence.  It is anticipated the introduction of the new inspection frame work for OFSTED there will be 

explicit references to the teaching of RE; this may go some way to address this. 

Overall aim: To have a development plan that supports schools to place a greater priority on the delivery of an effective RE syllabus for the enrichment of 

young people, making an integral contribution to producing well rounded individuals who can engage with the world around them in a meaningful way. 

Strategy Task Group Date Progress 

Management of SACRE & 
partnership with LA 

Scheme The LA and SACRE 
are mutually dependent 
upon each other and 
ensure statutory 
requirements are met.  
Analysis 

SACRE members Autumn 
2020 
(TBC) 

 

3

A
genda Item

 4



1. All four committees 
are represented 
fully from the local 
community 
consistently 
attending the 
meetings 

2. Produce annual 
report & follow up 

3. Constitution, 
development plan 

Engagement plan 

Incorporation of 
Commission on RE Report 
recommendations into the 
work of SACRE 

Form a view on the 
following: 

1) Name 
2) National 

entitlement 
3) Impact of the 

broader OFSTED 
framework 

4) Parental / guardian 
right to withdraw 
children from RE 

Share view formally with 
the commission 

SACRE By 
Autumn 
2020 

Production of recommendations to be sent to 
NASACRE 

Raise the profile of RE within 
schools in Rutland 

1a) Monitoring: Survey to 
identify what, when and 
how RE is currently taught 
to include the teachers’ 
view and the view of the 
pupils. 
1b) Evaluating: to 
determine what ‘good’ is 

Head Teachers’ Forum / RE 
network / teacher 
representatives on SACRE 

1a) 
Summer 
2020 
1b) 
Autumn 
2020 
 
2) 2021  

- Monitoring to include noting patterns of 
attendance at various of the network 
meetings (specifically by non – 
denominational schools) and SACRE 

- On – going reviews so more specific dates 
can be set and to include cross – 
curricular considerations as is 
appropriate 

4



and to develop a consensus 
of what ‘good’ looks like in 
practice. 
2)Ensure full schools 
involvement and belief in 
the value  of the subject by 
sharing best practice, 
access to training (including 
insight into choosing a 
curriculum that best suits 
our schools and delivers / 
on – line teaching 
resources) 

 
 

 

Future work:  

 Cross curricular links 

 Measuring outcomes across the key stages 

5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

School report 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Inspection of a good school: Chesterton 
Primary School 
Green End Road, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire CB4 1RW 

 
  
Inspection dates: 23 January 2020 
 

Outcome 
 
Chesterton Primary School continues to be a good school. 

 

What is it like to attend this school? 
 
Pupils enjoy being at this school. Most attend well and are keen to learn. Teachers have 
high expectations of what pupils should be able to do in a wide range of subjects. Pupils 
are doing well in English and mathematics and in other subjects such as music and 
religious education. Lessons in different subjects are interesting because teachers are 
confident in knowing the subjects they teach. There is a wide range of activities such as 

sports clubs that pupils enjoy. 

 
Pupils and staff say that behaviour is better than it was. Staff always expect pupils to 
behave well. This includes children new to Reception, who adjust quickly to new routines. 
The overwhelming majority of pupils work hard and respond quickly to teachers’ 
instructions and requests. Pupils show respect to teachers, visitors and each other. They 
take pride in their appearance and in their schoolwork. Pupils from different backgrounds 
get on well together at breaktimes and lunchtimes. Bullying is very rare, but pupils know 
what to do if they have concerns. There is a small number of pupils whose behaviour is 
concerning. This is managed increasingly well by staff, who are supported by their leaders. 
 

What does the school do well and what does it need to do better? 
 
Pupils’ learning is planned and delivered effectively across a wide range of subjects. This 
is true for pupils with special educational needs and/or disabilities and the increasing 
number of pupils who speak English as an additional language. The school is particularly 
successful at introducing pupils to whole-class teaching who had previously struggled to 
cope. 
 
The way subjects are taught was reorganised in September 2019. Teachers and pupils 
are clearer about how well they are doing in each subject. 
 
Children receive a strong start in learning to read as a result of a well-planned and 
ambitious phonics curriculum. For example, the Reception class spent time learning the 

7

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 
 

  Inspection report: Chesterton Primary School 

23 January 2020 2 
 

 

‘ch’ sound in the outside storytelling chair. Staff were dressed as characters from the 
story of ‘Chicken Licken’, which enthused the children. 
 
Pupils enjoy reading. They talk fondly of books they have read and the authors who wrote 
them. Reading sessions are purposeful and focus on books known to pupils from their 
work in the wider curriculum. The teaching of reading is logical and follows a coherent 
plan. All staff know what they would like pupils to be able to know and do by the time 
they leave school. Mathematics follows a similar pattern. Pupils progress through a 
curriculum that is well planned. In most classes, pupils acquire mathematical skills quickly. 
They can explain their knowledge and demonstrate their understanding and skills. Pupils 
use mathematical vocabulary well. In practice, pupils are not yet being taught to the 
same high standard across the school. This is because there is some inconsistency in how 
well teachers build on previous learning. 
 
Since September 2019, other subjects have been well organised. For example, in music, 
pupils in Year 2 can use words such as pitch and pulse. They are using the musical terms 
but because the language is quite new to them they still get confused about the 
meanings. Religious education (RE) has had effective subject leadership for longer than 
some other subjects. Subject leadership has been innovative in its approach. For example, 
the innovation of ‘faith days’ has been highlighted by staff as an opportunity for them to 
develop in-depth subject knowledge of a range of religions. Teachers demonstrate strong 
subject knowledge in their lessons. Pupils build their knowledge and understanding of 
different religions, and in turn tolerance of different views and opinions. Pupils enjoy RE 
and are thoughtful in class discussions. From Reception up through the school, there is a 
strong emphasis on values such as tolerance and respect. Pupils’ spiritual, moral, social 
and cultural development is promoted well through the school’s range of subjects. 
Subjects are brought alive. For example, during our visit, caterers were working with 
pupils making bread. 
 
Behaviour in lessons and around the school is generally positive. Pupils are polite and 
welcoming. They told me that everyone gets on well together. A small group of pupils in a 
few year groups occasionally disrupt learning. This is managed well by staff, who are 
supported by their leaders. Exclusions are used as a last resort. Attendance is improving 
because of a sharper focus on the issue and improving relationships with families. 
 
The multi-academy trust (MAT) provides opportunities for subject leaders to develop their 
knowledge and expertise. It also enables school leaders to benefit from advice and support 
from leaders of other schools with expertise in meeting the needs of pupils, especially those 
with challenging behaviour. 
 

Safeguarding 
 
The arrangements for safeguarding are effective. 
 
The procedures for the recruitment of staff are secure. Staff are all well trained to keep 
pupils safe. They are clear about what to do if they have concerns about pupils. The 
processes to seek support from external agencies are appropriate. 
 

8



 
 

 
 

  Inspection report: Chesterton Primary School 

23 January 2020 3 
 

 

What does the school need to do to improve? 
 

(Information for the school and appropriate authority) 
 
◼ The curriculum is well planned but, especially in English and mathematics, there is 

some inconsistency in teachers’ understanding of what pupils can already do. Leaders 
should continue to help all teaching and non-teaching staff to assess the knowledge, 
understanding and skills that pupils bring from their previous learning so that they can 
help pupils to move on more quickly. 

◼ Leaders are doing commendable work in building relationships with families, leading to 
reduced exclusions and increased attendance. Some of these strategies have been 
introduced this academic year. Leaders should monitor their effectiveness and their 
impact. 

 

Background 
 
When we have judged a school to be good we will then normally go into the school about 
once every four years to confirm that the school remains good. This is called a section 8 
inspection of a good school or non-exempt outstanding school. We do not give graded 
judgements on a section 8 inspection. However, if we find some evidence that the school 
could now be better than good or that standards may be declining, then the next 
inspection will be a section 5 inspection. Usually this is within one to two years of the date 
of the section 8 inspection. If we have serious concerns about safeguarding, behaviour or 
the quality of education, we will convert the section 8 inspection to a section 5 inspection 
immediately. 
 
This is the first section 8 inspection since we judged the school to be good on 10 July 
2015. 
 

How can I feed back my views? 
 
You can use Ofsted Parent View to give Ofsted your opinion on your child’s school, or to 
find out what other parents and carers think. We use Ofsted Parent View information 
when deciding which schools to inspect, when to inspect them and as part of their 
inspection. 
 
The Department for Education has further guidance on how to complain about a school. 
 
If you are the school and you are not happy with the inspection or the report, you can 
complain to Ofsted. 
 

Further information 
 
You can search for published performance information about the school. 
 

9

https://parentview.ofsted.gov.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/complain-about-school
https://www.gov.uk/complain-ofsted-report
http://www.compare-school-performance.service.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 

  Inspection report: Chesterton Primary School 

23 January 2020 4 
 

 

In the report, ‘disadvantaged pupils’ refers to those pupils who attract government pupil 
premium funding: pupils claiming free school meals at any point in the last six years and 
pupils in care or who left care through adoption or another formal route.   

10

http://www.gov.uk/guidance/pupil-premium-information-for-schools-and-alternative-provision-settings


 
 

 
 

  Inspection report: Chesterton Primary School 

23 January 2020 5 
 

 

 
School details 
 

Unique reference number 139556 

Local authority Cambridgeshire 

Inspection number 10133407 

Type of school Primary 

School category Academy sponsor-led 

Age range of pupils 4 to 11 

Gender of pupils Mixed 

Number of pupils on the school roll 168 

Appropriate authority Board of trustees 

Chair of trust Bob Dool 

Headteacher Toni Jackson (interim) 

Website www.chestertonprimary.org 

Date of previous inspection 10 July 2015, under section 5 of the 
Education Act 2005 

 

Information about this school 
 
◼ Since April 2019 the school has been led by an interim headteacher while the newly 

appointed headteacher is on maternity leave. The headteacher is due to return in 
April 2020. 

◼ The school is a broadly averaged-sized primary school. There is one class in each 
year group. 

◼ The school opened six years ago with just early years provision. It has added a year 
group each year. The school now has its first Year 6. 

◼ The school has pupils from a wide range of nationalities. The proportion of its pupils 
that speak English as their first language is below average. 

◼ The proportion of pupils who receive support for SEND is high. The proportion of 
pupils with an education, health and care plan is lower than the national average. 

◼ The proportion of disadvantaged pupils is average. 
 

Information about this inspection 
 
◼ We held meetings with the interim headteacher, senior and subject leaders, the chief 

executive and the director of learning of the MAT and a member of the local governing 

11

http://www.chestertonprimary.org/


 
 

 
 

  Inspection report: Chesterton Primary School 

23 January 2020 6 
 

 

body (LGB). We held a telephone discussion with the chair of the LGB. 

◼ During the inspection, we conducted deep dives in mathematics, music, reading and 
religious education. In each subject, we met with subject leaders, talked to pupils, 
visited lessons, spoke to teachers and looked at pupils’ work. 

◼ We considered the views of staff from a meeting with a group of staff. 

◼ We reviewed safeguarding records, including the central record of recruitment checks 
on staff. 

◼ We considered the views of 21 parents and carers who responded to Ofsted’s online 
parental questionnaire, Parent View. 

 
Inspection team 
 

Adrian Lyons, lead inspector Her Majesty’s Inspector 

Joseph Figg Ofsted Inspector 

    

12



 
 

 
 

  Inspection report: Chesterton Primary School 

23 January 2020 7 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
The Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (Ofsted) 

regulates and inspects to achieve excellence in the care of children and young 

people, and in education and skills for learners of all ages. It regulates and 
inspects childcare and children’s social care, and inspects the Children and Family 

Court Advisory and Support Service (Cafcass), schools, colleges, initial teacher 
training, further education and skills, adult and community learning, and education 

and training in prisons and other secure establishments. It assesses council 

children’s services, and inspects services for children looked after, safeguarding and 
child protection. 

 
If you would like a copy of this document in a different format, such as large print 

or Braille, please telephone 0300 123 1231, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk. 
 

You may reuse this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format 

or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, 
visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/, write to the 

Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: 
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. 

 

This publication is available at http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/. 
 

Interested in our work? You can subscribe to our monthly newsletter for more 
information and updates: 

http://eepurl.com/iTrDn. 

 
Piccadilly Gate 

Store Street 
Manchester 

M1 2WD 
 

T: 0300 123 1231 

Textphone: 0161 618 8524 
E: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk 

W: www.gov.uk/ofsted 
 

© Crown copyright 2020 

 
 

 
 

13

mailto:enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/
http://eepurl.com/iTrDn
mailto:enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/ofsted


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 DEVELOPMENT PLAN - 2020-22
	6 UPDATE ON RE AND OFSTED

